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L CONSENT AGREEMENT
Complainant, the Director of the Communities and Ecosystems Division, United States
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 9, (“EPA") and Respondent Cesar Cliavez Learning
Community, Inc. (hereafter “'F.ﬂptmdmt”) seck to settle this case and consent to the entry of
this Consent Agreement and Final Order (“CAFO"),

L. This administrative proceeding is initiated pursuant to Section 207 of the Tonic |
Substances Control Act, 15 U.8.C. § 2601, et. seq. (hereinafter referred to as “TSCA™ or the
““Act”), and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assesgroent Ibf
Civil Penaltics, 40 C.ER. Part 22, |

2. This proceeding involves the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act ("AHERA"™)
 also known as tile IT of TSCA and the regulations promuigated thereundez. Section 203(b) of
TSCA, 15U.S.C: § 2643(b), required the Adminimmr_nf EPA to, among other things,

promulgate regulations prescribing procedures for determining whether ash:stnamﬁﬂt:i:ﬂng

material is present in a sehusl l.'miidling under ibe wuthority of a local educational agency
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(“LEA"). Section 203(f) of TSCA, ﬂ5 U.S.C. § 2643(}), required the Administrator of EPA to,
among other things, promulgate regulations requiring each LEA to develop and implement an
asbestos management plan for s:chuul!bwildings under its authority. These regulations are
codified at 40 C.F.R. Parl 763, Subpart E (the “Subpart E regulations™).

3. Section 763.85(a)(2) of the Subpart E rogulations states that any building lcased or
acquired on or after .Dctnhur 12, 198K, that it 16 be used a8 a school building shall be inspectid as
deseribed under paragraphs (2)(3) and (4) of section 763,85 prior to use as a school building, and
that in the event that emergency usa f an uninspected building as a school building is nocessary,
such buildings shall be inspected within 30 days after commencement of such use. Section
763.93(g)(2) of the Subpart E regulations provides that each LEA, shall maintain in its
administrative office a complete, updated copy of a management plan for each school under its
administrative control or direction. 40 C.F.R. § 763.93(g)(3) of the Subpart E regulations
provides that each school shall maintain in jts administrative office a complete, updm;l copy of
the management plan fur that school, 40 CRR. § 763.93(2)(3),

4. Sections 207(a)(1) and 207(a)(3) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2647(a)(3), provides that any
LEA that fails to conduct an inspection, or fails to develop a management plan, pursuant to
regulations under Section Zﬂiﬁ} of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2643(1), is liable for a civil penalty.
Section 207(s) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2647(a), the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment
Act of 1990 (a5 armended by the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996), and the subsequent
Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19, authorize a civil penalty of
(1) not more than $5,000 for cach day during which a violation continues, for violations on or
before January 30, 1997; (2) not more rjum $5,500 for each day during which & violation

continues, for violulivns after January 30, 1997 but on or before March 15, 2004; and (3) not
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more than $6,500 for each dav during which a viclation continues, for viclations after March 15,
2004. )

5. Section 207(a) of TSCP‘.. 15 U.5.C. § 2647(a), further provides that any civil penalty
shall be ussewsed] and vullecied in the same manner, and subject to he same provisions, as in the
case of civil penalties assessed and collected under Section 16 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615,
Section 16(a)(2)(B) of TSCA, 15 U,5.C. § 2615(2)(2)(B). requires EPA tn take infn account the
nantre, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation(s), and, with respect to the violator,
ability to pay, effect on ability to continue to do business, any history of prior such violations, the
degree of culpability, and such other matters as justice may require. Section 207(a) states that .
any civil penaity collected shall be used by the LEA to éumply with TSCA Title II, with any
portion remaining unspent to be deposited irito the Asbestos Trust Fund, established pursuant to
Section 5 of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986, codified at 20 US.C. §
4022, In addition, Section 207(c) of TSCA, 15 U.8.C. § 2647(c), requires EPA to consider the
significance of the violation, the culpubility uf the violalor, including any history of previous
TSCA violations, the ability of' the violator to pay the penalty, and the ability of the violator to
continue to provide educational services to the community.

B. AUTHORITY AND PARTIES

6. Rcépmdeﬂt holds school chn;tm for Aztlan Academy and Cesar Chavez Middle
School, both of which are Arizona charter schools. Arizona charter schools are public, state-
funded schools constituted within the state of Arizona pursuant to the Arizona Charter School I
Law of 1994, See Arizona Revised Statutes Education Cﬂd& § 15-189. Arizona Charter schools

contract with the Arizona State Board of Education, the Arizona State Board for Charter Schoals,

or a district to provide an education service.

Tn re: Cesar Chaver Learning Commaunity, Inc., AHERA 2007, page 3



7. The authority to take action under Section 207 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2647, is vested
in the Adminijstrator of the EPA (“Administrator™), By EPA Delegation Order Number 12-2-A,
dated May 11, 1994, the Administrator delegated to the Regional Administrator of EPA Region
[X the authority to commence adnlinistiali ve proceedings under TSCA and to sign consent
agroements memorializing scitlements in such proceedings. By EPA Regional Order Number
R9 1260.06A dated May 19, 2005, the Regional Administrator of EPA Region IX redelegated
this authority to the Director of the Communities 2nd Ecosystems Division. The Directot of the
Communities and Ecosystems Eﬁﬂsi;;n has the authority to commence and settle an enforcement

action in this matter.

8. Respondent began operating both the Aztlan Acaderny and the Cesar Chavez Middle
School after October 12, 1988, and before 2002. Respondent owns, leases, or otherwise uses, at
the minimum, one (1) “school building,” as dcfined in Section 202(13) of TSCA Title I1, 15
U.5.C. § 2642(13), and in 40 C.F.R. §§ 762.83, located m 3376 6™ Avenue, Tucson, Arizona.
Respondant is o L ocal Bduestional Agency” (“LEA”), as defined in Section 202(7) of TSCA
Title TT, 15 U.S.C. § 2642(7). and in 40 C.ER. §8 763.83.

9. Sectiona 203(i) and 205(d) of TSCA Title lI, 15 U.5.C. § 2643(i) and 2645(d), require
that Respondent, prior to using a building as a school after October 12, 1988, conduct an
inspection and have developed a valid asbestos management plan. Section 207(a)(3) of TSCA
Title 1T, 15 U.S.C, § 2647(a)(3), and 40 CF.R. § 763.97(a) make it unlawful for Respondent to
fail to conduct such inspections and develop such an asbestos management plan, and provide that

each separate failure to comply with respect to a single school building constitutes a violation of

Section 207(a)(3) of TSCA Tille II.
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10. As of June 1, 2006, Respondent had not condueted such inspection, nor had
Respondent developed such an asbestos management plan for Eith&l; the Cesar Chavez Middle
School or Aztlan Academy, located at 3376 §. 6™ Street, Tucson, Arizona, operated by
Respondent. |

11 ﬁespondmt wiatasal Seatson 207(a)(1) of TSCA Title I, 15 U.S.C. § 2647(a)(1), by
failing to conduct an inspection, pursuant to Settion 203(h) of TSCA Tide I, 15 US.C. §
2643(b). and regulations thereunder at 40 C.F.R. Part 763, Subpart E, for the school buildings
referenced in Paragraph 8 above. - .

12. Respondent violated Section 207(a)(3) of TSCA Title IT, 15 U.S.C. § 2647(a)(3), by
failing to develop an asbestos management plan, pursuant to Section 203(i) of TSCA Tite I, 15
LIT.S.C. § 2643(i), and regulations thereunder at 40 C.F.R. Part 763, Subpart E, for the school

building referenced in Paragraph 8§ above.

13. To aveid the disruption ul underly educational activities and the expense of
l:mtracm:i and costly litigation, Respondent. in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b)(2), and for
the purpose of this proceeding, (i) admits that EPA has jurisdiction nver the subject .matl;er of this
CAFO and over Respondent; (ii) neither admits nor denies the specific factuall allegations
contained in Section LC. of this CAFO; (1ii) consents to any and all conditions specified in this
CAFOQ; (iv) agrees m'pn}r ancl consents to the assessment of, the civil administrative penalty
under Section LE. of this CAFQ; (v) waives any tight to contest the allegations contained in
Section L.C. of this CAFOQ, including but not limited to its right under Section 16(2)(2)(A) of

TSCA to request a hearing, and (vi) waives the right to appeal the proposed final order contained
In this CAFQ,
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14. After EPA’s May, 2006 inspection, Respondent had an inspection conducted by a
qualified inspector and a management plan pmpnrsd. and submuitted this managernent plan to
CRA. chm also provided w EPA an accounting of the costs incurred by Respondent in
complying with AHERA. In executing this CAFO, Respondent certifies that it has complied
with AHERA and the AHERA Subpart F regulations at Aztlan Academy and Cegar Chavez
Middle School and all other facilities under its control which are subject o AHERA
requirements.

F. CIVIL PENALTIES

15. A M: consents to the assessment of a penalty in the amount of
TWO THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS (§2,400), as specified in this Paragraph as
final setrlement and complete satisfaction of the civil claims against Respondent arising from the
facts alieged in Section 1.C. of the CAFO and under the Act, as alleged in Section LC. of the
CATO. '

B. Az the EPA-approved costs of compliance with AHERA and AHERA Subpart E for
Respondent are egual to the civil penalty amount in Paragraph 16.A, the costs of compliance
already expended by Respondent shall represent full payment of penalty. .

16. Issuance of this CAFO does not constitute & waiver by EPA of its right to enforce the
terms of this CAFO or to seek other civil or criminal relief for violations, if any, of any provision
of federal law not specifically settled by this Consent Agreement. Nothing in this CAFQ shall
relieve Respondent of its duty to comply with all applicable provisions of the Act, rules
promulgated thereunder, and other Federal, state or local laws or statutes.
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17. The provisions of this CAFO shall be binding on Respondent and on Respondent’s
officers, directors, emuployees, agents, servants, authorized representatives, successors, and
assIgns.

1B. Each paaty shall beur ils own costs, fees, and disbursements in this action.

19. For the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not claim a
deduction for any civil penalty payment made pnmuhrt to this CARO.

20. This Consent Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Respondent
and EPA. This Consent Agreement and Final Order is for the purpose of fully and finally
gettling the civil claims againsi Respondent arising from the facts alleged in section L.C. of this
CAFOQ. Because the EPA-approved costs of Respondent’s compliance with AHERA and
AHERA Subpart E regulations exceed the civil penalty Hability against Respondént for the
violations alleged in Section LC. of this CAFO, the filing of this CAFO shall constitute full
settlernent and satisfaction of civil penalty lisbility against Respondent for the violations slleged
in Section L.C, of this CAFO. |

21. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18(b)(3) and 22.31(b), the effective date of this
CAFO shall be the date on which the accompanying Final Order, having heen aignr;ﬂ by the
Regional Judicial Officer, is filed.

22. The undersigned representatives of each party to this Consent AMt certify that
each is duly authorized by the party whom he or she represents to enter into the terms and bind
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that party to it.

CESAR CHAVEZ LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.:

"‘“M Baﬂw _ ‘r

e Judty BISIENA IO
e DI REEZTOR.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

Date: _/ /04 By: ﬂw{/
JEFF SCOTT |
Acting Director, Communities and Ecosystems Division
U.S. Environmental Pmtecnm Aamcy,
Region IX
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IL FINAL ORDER
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that this Consent Agreement and Final Order be entered and

that Respondent shall comply with the terms set forth in the Consent Agreement.

il = QL /

Steven Jawg awgiel
Regional Judicial Dfﬁcer
U.S. EPA, Region IX
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that the original and one copy of the fully executed Consent Agreement and

Final Order Pursuant to 40 C.F.R §§ 22.13 and 22.18 ( Docket No. TSCA-9-2008- 0 0 2 )
against the Cesar Chavez Learning Community, Inc., was filed this day with the Regional
Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA, Region IX, 75 Hawthorne Street, San Francisco, California 94105, and
that a true and correct copy of the same was sent to Respondent at the following address:

Sister Judy Bisignano

Director

Cesar Chavez Learning Community, Inc.

3376 South 6™ Avenue
Tucson, AZ 85713

Certified Mail No. ___ 7007 0710 0003 6239 8915

Danille £ (o e

anielle Carr
Regional Hearing Clerk
United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX




